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Plaintiff. the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC"), by its undersigned attorneys, for its
complaint alleges:

1. The FTC brings this action under Sections 13(b) and 19 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act (“FTC Act™), 15 U.S.C.§§ 33(b) and 57b. and Section 814 of the Fair Debt
Collection Practices Act (“FDCPA™), 15 U.S.C. § 1692/, to obtain temporary, preliminary,
and permanent injunctive relief against Defendants to prevent them from engaging in
deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), and

from engaging in deceptive and abusive acts or practices in violation of the FDCPA, 15
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United States government created by statute. 15 U.S.C. § 41 et seq. The FTC is charged.
inter alia. with enforcement of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act. 15 U.S.C. § 45(a). which

prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce, and the FDCPA, 15
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authorized to initiate federal district court proceedings. by its own attorneys. seeking a
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transacts, or has transacted. business in this district and throughout the United States.
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address in Norcross. Georgia. Ryan & Reed, Inc.. a Georgia corporation. transacts, or has
transacted, business in this district and throughout the United States.

9. Defendant RRI. Inc., is a Florida corporation and lists its principal address in
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and throug!out t!e Bmte! !tates.

10. Defendant Robert W. Bird (“Bird”), a member of the Florida bar, has acted as

Nl

an actual or apparent agent of one or more of the corporate defendants in connection with the
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acting alone or in concert with others. he has formulated, directed. controlled or had authority
to control, or participated in the acts and practices set forth in this complaint. Hunt Sr.
transacts. or has transacted. business in this district and throughout the United States.

13.  Defendant Joe L. Hunt, Jr. (“Hunt Jr.”") has been president of defendant
Rawlins & Rivera, a Florida corporation. At times material to this complaint. acting alone or
in concert with others. he has formulated, directed. controlled or had authority to control, or
participated in the acts and practices set forth in this complaint. Hunt Jr. transacts. or has

transacted, business in this district and throughout the United States.

14.  Defendant Shannon Hunt has been the president and sole director of defendant
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with others, she has formulated. directed, controlled. or participated in the acts and practices

set forth in this complaint. Shannon Hunt transacts. or has transacted. business in this district

and throughout the United States.
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Rawlins & Rivera, Inc.. a Georgia corporation. Ryan & Reed, Inc.. a Florida corporation,
Ryan & Reed, Inc., a Georgia corporation. and RRI, Inc. (collectively, the “RRI Entities™)
have acted as a common enterprise while engaging in the deceptive acts and practices and
other violation of law alleged below. The RRI Entities have been commonly controlled by
one or more of the individual defendants. have shared employees, commingled funds. and
engaged in a common scheme to collect debts through unlawful practices. In addition, each
RRI entity has shared its place of business with one or more other RRI Entities. Individual
defendants Bird. Brust, Hunt Sr., Hunt Jr., and Shannon Hunt have formulated, directed,

controlled or had authority to control, or participated in the acts and practices of the RRI
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common enterprise, each of them is jointly and severally liable for the deceptive acts and

practices and other law violations alleged below. The common enterprise transacts or has
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escalating threats that represent legal action by or on behalf of a defendant entity or the

defendant entity’s debt collection client is imminent. For example, some early letters to

consumers state, “PLEASE CONSULT YOUR ATTORNEY." Letters later in the chain
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additional cost of legal fees that the defendant entity or its client will incur — only by
submitting payment to Defendants promptly.
9 Inoumerons instances Defendants sepd capsnmere ane ar mara dinnina
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letters that use the letterhead of defendant Bird. refer to a Defendant entity as Bird's “client,”

and, in numerous instances. are purported to be signed by. “Robert W. Bird, Attorney At
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dunning letter or in outbound dunning calls to defendants, Defendants” collectors threaten

the consumer arrested. sue the consuimer_sarnish_the cansuimer’s

wages, and seize the property of the consumer or the consumer’s family unless Defendants
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other oral representations to lead consumers to believe that legal action against the consumer
has been taken, or will be taken shortly. Defendants’ collectors, in some instances, also
demand far more than the amount of a consumer’s debt if the consumer does not pay

immediately. In addition. in numerous instances. Defendants® collectors represent that the
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Defendants’ collectors represent to consumers that an attorney has reviewed the consumer’s
case and is preparing the case for legal action when, in truth and in fact, no attorney has

reviewed the consumer’s case and no attorney is preparing the case for legal action.

32. In numerous instances, Defendants’ collectors call consumers repeatedly or
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COUNT ONE

37. On numerous occasions, in connection with the collection of debts,
Defendants have represented to consumers. expressly or by implication. that:

(a) Defendants’ collector is an attorney or working on behalf of an
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against a consumer:
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(c) Nonpayment of a debt will result in a consumer’s arrest or
imprisonment, or seizure, garnishment. or attachment of a consumer’s
property or wages: or

(d) Consumers will be liable for Defendants’ legal costs.

38.  Intruth and in fact, on numerous occasions:

(a) Defendants’ collector is not an attorney or working on behalf of an
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against the consumer;
(b) Defendants do not intend to take legal action against the consumer;
©) Nonpayment of a debt will not result in a consumer’s arrest or
imprisonment, or seizure, garnishment. or attachment of a consumer’s
property or wages; and

(d) Consumers will not be liable for Defendants® legal costs.
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39. Therefore, Defendants’ representations as set forth in Paragraph 37 are false or

misleading and constitute deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC
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COUNT THREE

42, On numerous occasions. in connection with the collection of debts.
Defendants have communicated with a consumer after receiving written demand from the

consumer to cease communications, in violation of Section 805(c) of the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C.

§ 1692¢(c).
COUNT FOUR
43, On numerous occasions, in connection with the collection of debits,
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corporation, Ryan & Reed, Inc., a Florida corporation, Ryan & Reed, Inc., a Georgia

corporation, RRI, Inc., Brust. Hunt Sr., Hunt Jr.. and Shannon Hunt have engaged in conduct
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COUNT FIVE
44. On numerous occasions, in connection with the collection of debts,
Defendants have vsed false degentive or misleadine represeptatigns ormeane in vinlation of

Section 807 of the FDCPA. 15 U.S.C. § 1692e, including, but not limited to:

(a) Defendants have falsely represented the character. amount. or legal
status of a debt. or any services rendered or compensation which may
be lawfully received by a debt collector for collection of a debt, in
violation of sections 807(2)(A) and (B) of the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C.

§§ 1692e(2)(A) and (B).

(b) Defendants have falsely represented or implied that an individual is an
attorney or that a communication is from an attorney. in violation of
Section 807(3) of the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 1692¢(3);

(c) Defendants have falsely represented or implied that nonpayment of a

debt will result in the arrest or imprisonment of a person or seizure,
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(e) Defendants have used false representations or deceptive means to

collect or attempt to collect a debt or to obtain information concerning
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COUNT SIX
45, On numerous occasions, in connection with the collection of a debt, when the

consumer has notified Defendants in writing within the thirty-day period pursuant to
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disputed. Defendants have continued to attempt to collect the debt before providing

verification of the debt to the consumer, in violation of Section 809(b) of the FDCPA. 15

U.S.C. § 1692g(b).

CONSUMER INJURY
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THIS COURT’S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF

47. Sections 13(b) and 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b) and 57b. and
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and other ancillary relief, including consumer redress, disgorgement, and restitution to

ancillary relief to remedy injury caused by Defendants’ law violations.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff Federal Trade Commission, pursuant to Sections 13(b) and
19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b) and 57b. and Section 814(a) of the FDCPA, 15 U.S.C.
§ 1692/(a). and the Court’s own equitable powers, requests that the Court:

1. Award Plaintiff such preliminary injunctive and ancillary relief as may be
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resulting from Defendants’ violations of the FTC Act and the FDCPA,
including but not limited to. rescission of contracts, the refund of monies paid.

and the disgorgement of ill-gotten gains by Defendants; and

(o

Award plaintiff the costs of bringing this action, as well as such other and

additional relief as the Court may determine to be just and proper.

Dated: /, /3 /, /ﬂ 7 Respectfully submitted.
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